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1. 42 U.S.C. Sections 7412 and 7413: TheCleanAirPEtandthe 
NESWS establish strict liability for civil violations of their 
provisions. 

2. 40 C.F.R. Part 61. Subart M: In order to establi& liability 
under the asbestos NESHAP, there must be a two fold showing 
that (a) the minimal threshold requirements of the NLWAP have 
been m e t ,  and (b) the work practice requirements of the 
have not been satisfied. 

3. 40 C.F.R. Sctions 61.145 1c) (3) and lc) 161 (1) : &mplahant need 
not prove that visible emissions of askstos occurred in order 
to prove a violation of 40 C.F.R. Sections 61.145 (c) (3) and (c) 
(6) (i) 

4. 40 C.F.R. Part 61. Subart M: In a case involving alleged v i e  
lations of the astestcs NESHAP, it is routine to rely on the 
ohemations of inqectms to deternine whether astestos was 
adequately wetted. 



5. 40 C.F.R. Sections 61.145 and 61.150: The rquiremmts of Section 
61.145 do mt apply to RAU4 whi& has been collected ard rmtained, 
i. e., bagged far disposal* instead I , the lz@mmm& of section 
61.150 apply to such RACM. 

For Canplainant: Deborah E. Hilsman, Esquire 
Assistant Regional Counsel 
U. S. EPA, Region 10 
1200 Sixth Avenue 
Seattle,  WA 98101 

For Respondent : John B. Ingelstran, Esquire 
Racine, Olson, Nye, & 

WEdge 
P. 0. Box 1391 
Center Plaza 
Pocatello, ID 83204-1391 

Before: H e n r y B .  Frazier, I11 
Chief . . tive Law Judge 



INrrrzu DECISION 

I. Ccanplaint and Answer 

This pmcediq was initiated by a two ccsllnt axplaint issued by the 

United States Envircnmrental Agency (EPA, Canpl*, ar the 

Agency) pursuant to Section 113 (d) of the Clean Air  Act (CAA ar A c t ) ,  

42 U. S . C. Section 7413 (d) , far the assessnent of a civil penalty. Ihe 

caplaint alleges that Norma J, Ehevamia and Frank J. Echevarria, dba 

Eicheco Environmental Sewioes, (Echeco m Rspondents) violated 40 C. FIR, 

!3ection 61.145(c) and -ion 112 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. Section 7412. 

More specifically, the amplaint alleges in two counts, the follawing 

violations of the Act: 

Count I: Respondents, while stripping regulated asbestos-containiq 

material (RACM) froan facility caponen-, had used insufficient water during 

the stripping operation to prevent the release of particulates in violation 

of 40 C.F.R. Section 61.145 (c) (3) . 
Count 11: Respondents had failed to keep RACM that had been stripped 

or removed froan facility q n e n t s  adequately wet and to treat such 

mterial in preparation for disposal in accordance with 40 C.F.R. Section 

61.150, in violation of 40 C.F.R. Section 61.145(c)(6)(i). 

For these alleged violations, Ocanplainant se&s a civil pe~lty of $43,400. 

In its answer, E c f i w  admitted the follawing allegatims in the 

amplaint: 

1. This is an admMstrative action instituted pursuant to section 

113 (d) of the CAA, 42 U. S . C. Section 7413 (d) , for the assessnent of a civil 

penalty. The Ccanplainant is Region 10, United States EPA, which has been 

delegated the authority to institute this action. 



2. Section 1l2 of the CXA, 42 U.S.C. Section 74l2, ?quires the Admin- 

istrator to -gate regulations establishing emission standards (or work 

practice -, if messary) for listed hazardous air pollutants, 

inclu3i.q asbestos. These mission stamkmk am hewn as the Natianal 

-ion for A i r  Pollutants (m) . 
3. Rnsuant to Section 1l2 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. Section 74U, the 

. . Mnuwtmtor pmmlgated regulations ulat govern the missions, hardling 

and disposal of ashstus. These asbehtcs IlE3-W regulaticns are fard 

at 40 C.F.R. Part 61, Sukpart M (1991) (asbestos -). 

4. The re!quir-ts of 40 C.F.R. Section 61.145(b) and (c) of the 

arbertos NESHAP apply to ~ach  owner or operator of a damlition or r e m -  

tion activity if the combined amount of regulated asbestosmntaidrq 

raterial in the facility is at least 260 linear feet on pipes or 160 square 

feet on other facility capnents, or, where the length or area could not 

be measured previously, at least 35 cubic feet. 40 C.F.R. Section 61.145 

(a) (1) 

5. Noma J. Echevarria and F'rank J. Echevarria are wife and husband who 

do lxlsiness as Echeco mvironmental Services. 

6. At the time of the violations alleged in this conplaint, employees 

of Norma J. Echevarria and F'rank J. Echevarria, dba Echeco D~vironmental 

Services, m e  ramring asbestos fran the North Gem School. 

7. On May 23, 1991, Echeco Environmental Services filed a notification 

of the renwal of asbestcs f m  the North Gem Schml, Bancroft School District, 

in Bancroft, Idaho. 

8. on ~une 4, 1991, an EPA hpector inspected the ~orth   em school 

site in order to determine mnpliance with the asbestos NESDAP (EPA inspection). 



9. The asbestos remval activity in the lxlildings a t  the North Gem 

School site constitutes a t~rencnmtionll activity as that term is defined i n  

40 C.F.R. S ~ ~ O Z I  61.141. * 

10. The luildings a t  the North Gem School s i te  are a ttfaciliwt as 
1 

that term is defined in 40 C.F.R. Section 61.141. 

11. The piping and boiler in the hildings on the North Gem School 

site are "facility capnentstt as that tern is defined in 40 C.F.R. Section 

61.141. 

12. The dry, friable asbestos-containing mterial oberved by the EPA 

inspector a t  the North Gem School s i te  on June 4, 1991, is RACM as defined 

in  40 C.F.R. Section 61.141. 

13. A t  the t h e  w e n -  began r eno~t ion  of the build- on the 

North Gem School site, a t  least 260 linear feet or 160 square feet of 

as defined in  40 C.F.R. Section 61.141 w a s  scheduled to be stripped, 

remmed, dislodged, cut, drilled, or similarly disturbed. 

14. A t  the t ime  of the EPA inspection, Respondents were each the ttawner 

or operator of a demolition or renovation activityw as that term is defined 

- in 40 C.F.R. Section 61.141. 

-, hawever, denied the violations alleged in the oc~nplaint. 

More specifically, -dents denied the following allegations in the 

ccmplaint: t h a t  piles of dry, unmntained dehris frcan the asbestos r m l  

activity were xattered arcxnd the boiler roan floor; that there was a pile 

of pipes covered with dry friable asbestos-containing insulation and pipes 

fran wfiich sucfi M a t i o n  had been stripped in the boiler roan; that the 



inspectar collected smnples of dry friable pipe insulation material, M c h  

w t x e  inadequately et; that the inspector opened the bags which carrtained 

pipe insulation which had heen stripped ard collected samples of dry friable 

asbestos-cantaining material, which were inadequately wet; that the inspectar 

-bass- 
. . boiler insulation material and collected a q l e  

fran ea& of several bags of insulation material .that was dry, friable 

asbestosmntaining material, Mch was hdquately wet; that the samples 

w t x e t e s t e d a n d f a u r d t o w n t a i n ~ 3 5 % a n d 9 5 % a s b e s t o s ; t h a t  

Respon3ents failed to ccanply with 40 C.F.R. Section 61.145(~)(3); or that 

F&spordentS failed to canply with 40 C.F.R. 61.145(c) (6) (i) . 
11. Back- - Processing of the Case 

A hearing was held in this matter in Pocatello, Idaho on July 20, 21, 

ard 22, 1993. T h e r m ,  the Cc~rrplainant arrd the Respondents filed their 

pmposed finiirrgs of fact and conclusions of law, tcgethez with supparting 

kiefs, on 1, 1993, and November 30, 1993, respectively. Reply 

kief s were filed by both parties on December 17, 1993. 

111. Contentions of the Farties 

A. Ccaoplainant's Contentions 

In its po&hearirq brief, Canplainant advances the following legal 

argmmts: The CAA and the askesks NE9-W inpce strict liabiliw. 'Ihe 

validity of the asbestos NEMAP cannot be challenged durw an enforce- 

ment pmcedq. The threshold requirements in 40 C.F.R. Section 61.145 

establish the applicability of the work practice standards of the asbestos 

NESiAP. An ashstos hspecbr's observations a .  sufficient to establish 

asbestas violations. Proof of visible emissions is not necessary 

to establish liability for violation of 40 C.F.R. Section 61.145(c). 



Canplainant also oorrbds that the pr:eponderance of the evidence 

demonstrates that Fkqordats violated the asbestos NESHAP wetting 

rqukrmts. In sqprt of this position, Ccgnplainant asserts: The 

-ti- of the EPA hqecbr d o m t  that Reqadents fail& to 

adequately wet the RACM while stripping and failed to adequately ket 

the RACM to ensure that it -in wet until collected for disposal. 

An indeperdent contractor obsen~ed RACM that had been remved during 

this renovation that was not adequately wet. The testinmy 

by Fkspondentsf asbestos worb confinned that RACM renuxed durirrg the 

renovation was not adequately wet. The additional testimony presented 

by Fespondents' witnesses does not refute the violations alleged. Ihe 

testimony presented by Ccanplainantf s witnesses was more =edible than 

that of Responrlentsf witnesses. 

Finally, Ccgnplahant insists that the penalty sought by Ccanplainant 

should be assessed against Respondent. In support, Caplainant mintains 

that the CAA statutory criteria as incorporated into the CAA penalty 

policy establish the method for calculating the penalty and the praposed 

penalty was calculated in accclrrdance with the ashsbs pmalty policy. 

B. Fkspon%!ntsf con&ntians 

In their posthearing kief, Respondents advance the following legal 

aryuments: 40 C.F.R. Section 61.145 (c) (3) and Section 61.145 (c) (6) (i) 

are unconstitutionally vague and ambiguous. The EPAfs publication on 

adequate wetness demonstmtes the vagueness of the regulations arrl there 

is no consensus as to the definition of ttadequately wettt in the regulatian. 

-en& also contend that the asbestos-containing material at 

the North Gem School was adequately wet when stripped. In sqprt of this 

position, Respondents assert that the EPAfs inspectorts testimony and 



inspection sharld not be given mch weight and that the language of 40 

C.F.R. Section 61.145(c) (3) applied to the evidence presented does not 

warrant the finding of a violation. w e n t s  also that the 

asbestos-containing material remmd and stripped frm the North Gem 

School was kept wet until collected for disposal in accmdance w i t h  the 

asbestos NmHAP. 

Finally, Ftesprdents insist that the Koposed civil penalty is 

umamanted and misapplied based upon Respordents degree of axperation 

and the inequitable application of the factor of e c o d c  benefit of 

noncapliance. mndents request that I exercise my discretion to 

withhold a penalty in the event a violation is found. 

IV. Findings of Fact 

At the outset, I nust dispose of Respondentsr contention that the 

test* of Ms. Goehring, the EPA inspector, evidences a potential bias 

against one of Respondentsr employees and, hence, calls into question 

her credibility. In support of their request that I give little or no 

weight to Ms. Goehringrs testimony, mndents allege that she c a d t t e d  

"several unprofessional oversightsw during her inspection at the North 

Gem School site. 

Ms. Goehrhg testified that the RACM w h i c h  she okaxed at N& 

Gem School was not adequately wetted during stripping and was not adequately 

wetted after stripping to ensure that it remained wet until collected and 
-11 

contained for disposal. This determination was based upon her obser- 

vation and examination of the RACM at the site and on her training and 

experience in determining whether asbestas has been adequately wetted; 



a MS. Goehring has a x h z b d  aves 300 inspecti- for ccgnpl- w i t h  the 
21 

asbestos N'Esmp. In this case, Ms. Goehrhq d-ted her observations 

i n h e r i n s p e c t i o n r e p a r t a n d i n t h e @ ~ w h i c h w e r e i n t r & u c e d  

into evidence. She also took samples of the RACM for analysis. 

Ms. Go&rhqrs testimony as to the failure to adequately w e t  the RACM 

cannotbesaidtohavebeenrefutedbythatofMr. BradBrclwning, the 

only one of RespontEents' ~ l o y e e s  to remove the a&esbs.-rmrtammrIQ . . 
material (ACM) in the boiler roan. Although M r .  B m w d q  testified that 

his goal is * I t 0  w e t  the material as best you cantt1 he admitted that l1on 
31 

every job I have ever been on I have seen visible emissions of scane type." 

m-esumably, llevery jobv1 would include the abatement project in this case. 

None of Respondentst remining w i t n e s s e s  refuted Ms. Goehringrs o b e m a t i ~  

that the RACM had mt been adequately wetted. Indeed, none of these 

witnesses were in a position to refute her testimony in this regard because 

none had observed the stripping and removal process in  the boiler rocan. 

Ms. Goehring testified that she did not harbor any p t x s o ~ l  animosity 
4 I 

against Respordents or Echeco Ehvironmental Services. She also testified 

that she had h p c k d  other jobs performe3 by Echeco in which she did not 
5/ - 

f ird any apparent violations. 

Fkspondents assert that Ms. Goehringfs testimony nevertheless lleviden=es 

a potential bias against Mr. Browning. l1 In her testimony, MS. Goehring 

stated that she had mrked for Brad Brawning in 1989 and that she could not 



,6/ 
recall any tension them on that occasion. Instead, she testified 

that Mr. Brawning told her that she had been so good abcPlt w o r m  long 
Z/ 

hours and in helping him out that he ought to h y  her a dozen roses. 
- 

8/  91 
Ttae conflicting test* of Ms. &&ring anl Mr. Bird regardirrg a tel- 

oorrversatim which they had in 1992 may be attrbxbd to differ- recollec- 

tions of the carnrersation; certahly such test* does not evince a 

persoml bias tuward Mr. Brckming. 

Ihe list of "several unprofessional oversightstt which Respon3ents offer 

to suppart their attack of Ms. Goehringrs credibility constitute little 

mre than criticislr; of the m m x  in which she performed her duties in 

co&uctirrg the inspection in this case. None demnstrate a bias tuward 

Mr. or tuward Respondents. The fact that one sanple d c h  Ms. Goehring 

collected was described as damp by the laboratory technician is in keeping w i t h  

Ms. &&ring's description of the ttsemi-wetm pile fram which it was taken. 

In conclusion, I find Ms. Goehringrs t e s t h n y  to have been credible. 

An inspector's observations are sufficient to prove liability for failure 
- 

lo/ 
to adequately wet RACM during ard following stripping. Respondents have 

failed to demonstrate bias or prejudiae on Ms. Gcehringrs part which wuld 

call into question her o m t i o n s  during the inspection or her testimony 

as to the violations alleged in the ccanplaint. 

6/ Tr. 100-101. - 
7/ Tr. 254-255. - 
_8/ Tr. 235-236. 

9/ Tr. 572-576. - 
101 See M 46, infra. - 



On the basis of the errtire recad, including the testimony elicited at 

the hearing, the W i t s  received in evidence and the suhnissions of the 

parties, anl giving such weight as may be appropriate to all relevant and 

material evidence which is not atherwise unreliable, in addition to the 

admissions mde by Respondents in'the answer, I make the findings of fact 

which follow. Each matter of CO- has been d e t e m h d  upon a 

ance of the evidence. All contentions and prqmsed findings and conclusions 

s u l d t t e d  by the parties have been considered, and whether or not specifically 

discussed herein, those which are hnsistent with this decision or which are 

atherwise irrelevant or immterial to the specific violations alleged, are 

rejected. 

1. Mr. Frank J. mevarria and his wife, Mrs. Norma J. Echevarria, are 

the sole owners of Echeco Ehvjrommtal ~esrvices, a sole proprietorship 

engaged in asbestas abatemnt work. (Transcript (Tr.) 435-36.) 

2. Echeco s u h i t t e d  a bid of $6,900.00 to perform as- abate- 

ment work in the boiler rooan at North Gem School. This bid covered 

abatement work on both the boiler and the p i p s  in the boiler room. 

F&em s u h i t t e d  a bid of $8,200.00 to perfom the abaterrmt work on the 

pipes under the gymnasium at the North Gem School. These bids, which 

totaled $15,100.00, were based upon $8.20 per linear foot for the remval 

of pipe insulation an5 $15.50 p square foot for the r-1 of the 

insulation on the boiler. Echecofs bids were accepted. Echecofs bids far 

the r-1 of boiler material is generally in the range of $10.00 to 

$15.00 per square foot. (Tr. 447-449, 473; F&spondent8s -its (Resp. 

B.) 7 and 8 . )  



3. There were only two bids on the abatement project a t  North Gem 

School. second bid was suhnitted by Pacific Mechanical Insulation, 

Inc. (PMT). M I  bid $6,847.00 for the boiler roan work and $8,873.00 far  

the work on the pipes beneath the gymnasium fa r  a total of $15,720.00. 

(Tr. 482, 534, 547; Resp. m., 26.) 

4. M r .  Claylon Perkins, Head Cusbd.ian a t  North Gem School, served 

as the awnerfs representative or Project Manager on the ashstos abatement 

project a t  N o r t h  Gem School. (Tr. 524, 526.) 

5. The insulation on the boiler and pipes in the boiler roan a d  cn 

the pipes mth the school had been -at4 in  late 1985 and early 

1986 w i t h  several layers of cheese cloth and latex paint. The result was  a 

super hard, almost cast-hard e n c a m a n t  on the boiler and pipes. (W. 536-38.) 

6. Mr. Claylon Perkins had sprayed water fran a hose on the boiler emcap 

sulant quite a few t i m e s  after the installation of the - w a n t  and before the 

abatement project began while in the process of cleaning scat f m  the boiler. 

The water did not penetrate the encapsulant and, hence, w a s  nut ahsorbed by the 

insulation on the boiler. Instead, the water sinply ran off the encapsulant. 

(Tr. 538-39.) 

7. l'he magnesium block insulation w h i c h  w a s  against the surface of the 

boiler w a s  cwered by a layer of canvas (over which the encapsularrt had been 

plaoed), a quarter inch layer of asbestos paste and scmne askesbs  paper, 

a l l  of which had been wrappe3 by fuur or five wire loops and by chicken 

wire, !Ihe chicken wire was wrapped entirely ar0m-d the boiler except for 

a fewpa- spots where past repairs had beenmade to the boiler. (Tr. 

639. ) 



8. The pipe insulation consisted of plain corrugated pipe lagging w i t h  

crinkly paper inside am3 corrugated paper with d t e  pawder silica or magnes- 

ium powder inside each wrap, together with asbesbs block and sane fiberylass 

Jn places on the pipe. The insulation was affixed to the pipe w i t h  the use 

of smll snap bands aver wfiich a canvas cwer had been placed ar w i t h  the use 

of wire which had been twisted and aver wfrich a canvas cwer had been placed. 

?he -ant cwe~ed the CarrVas. (Tr. 638-40,) 

9. Prior to the beginning of the abatemmt pmject cm June 3, 1991, 

loose insulation dehis was lying on the floor of the boiler roam; there kere 

holes or cracks in the insulation on the boiler; there was a hole in the 

insulation on the hot water holding tank; and same of the pipe insulation was 

hanging 1-. (Tr. 565-67, 635, 651.) 

10. Echeco natified EPA of the asbestos r-1 project at North Gem 

School prior to the beginning of the work on June 3. (cmplainantfs -it 

(Canpl. rn.) 1 D.) 
11. Fcheco notified the Bancsoft Police Department, the Bancroft Hedlth 

Department and the W f t  Fire Departxwt of the asbestos removal project 

at North Gem School prior to the b e g i m i q  of the work on ~ u n e  3. (~r. 451; 

Resp. m. 12, 13 and 14.) 

12. Prior to beginning the project, Echeco personnel installed a double 

layer of critical barriers, using clear plastic and W C  piping, over the windokls 

and doors of the boiler roam and installed a decontamination unit at the 

entsance to the contahmmt area. The decontamination unit consisted of 

a clean roan, a shower roan and a small space of 1 1/2 to 2 feet  between 

the entrance to containment and the shower roam bhich was considerel the 

dirty roan. The drain in the center of the floor of the boiler roam was 

sealed so that no water cauld go into the waste water system. (Tr. 640-41.) 



13. Mr. Brad Bmwnhg, a menhr of the Ed'leco crew, rammed the insula- 

tion f m  the boiler and the pipes in the boiler rocnn. Flhen Mr. Bmwnbq 

first entered the boiler hrilding an June 3, 1991, he fourxi it to be very 

d i r t y  due to the cx#l dust that had been g-ted by the coal h r n b q  heating 

system. ~to th ree inchesofwald fus tccnre red the tapof the ra f t e r s in  

the ceiling a .  of the bxi1di.r~~. He used a water hose to wash the coal 

dust to the floor. (Tr. 455-56, 477, 634-35, 651.) 

14. had an airless sprayer on site at the North Gem School. It 

was located artside the boiler rocan and the hose frum the airless sprayer 

went thmqh a windm into the boiler roam containment area. A surfactant, 

ar amending agent, was added to the water of the airless sprayer to hmease 

the absorption of the water by the asbestos. The airless sprayer rig was 

atta&ed to a joist in the ceiling so that it would spray the entire wntain- 

ment area w i t h  a constant mist .  The airless sprayer was in operation on 

June 4, 1991. (Tr. 454, 456, 540, 642-644, 653.) 

15. A negative air ma- was used by Echeco in the boiler rocan. 'Ihe 

machine, which was a 2000 cfm unit, served as an air filtration device to 

rernnre airkame fibess with a 99.7 degree of aamcy.  'Ihe machine filtered 

the air in the boiler rocan containment area about six or seven times an hour. 

Mr. Echevarria chaqed the filters on the negative air maddm on June 3, 

1991. (Tr. 55, 333, 454, 456, 640, 642; EZesp. 27; -1. E S I .  9 El 12 A.) 

16. To renwrve the insulation frcan the pipes, Mr. Brawning used a 

utility knife to cut holes in the material cavering the pipes -use 

the encapsulant: cmerirrg the insulation prevented the absorption of water. 

He then inserted a water hose into the holes to wet the insulation material 

as it was being remaved f m  the pipes. (Tr. 647, 679.) 



17. To remove the insulation franthe boiler, M r .  BrckJningbeganby 

pounding holes into the -ant at  the very top of the boiler anl 

inserting a water hoes into those holes to wlet the mgnesium blocks. 

of the blocks cam off as a s-le un i t  while others,khich w e d  tightly 

to the boiler, came off in pieces. (Tr. 644-46, 649-50, 678-79.) 

18. Mr. Brawning was wttbq the insulation material when Mr. Whevarria 

entered the mnbhmt area i n  the boiler roan a t  approximately 3:OO FM on 

June 3 and again on the nr>ming of Jtme 4. (Tr. 454, 477, 505. ) 

19. A s  Mr.  Bmwnhg r-ed the insulation material, he w a d  p t  it 

on the floor to abE;orb the water that had collected on the floor and to  help 

fulfill the requiremmt for adequate wet t ing .  When he l e f t  the contairmrent 

area for lunch on June 4, Mr. Eimmbq l e f t  sane asbstus-containing m a t e r i a l ,  

wfiich had been removed that morning, unbagged and on the floor where it had 

been sprayed d m  w i t h  the airless spray rig. (Tr. 650,653.) 

20. mere were about 70 or 80 h g s  of insulation material in the contain- 

ment area of the boiler roam by noon on June 4, 1991. These included the 

bags of material w h i c h  had been rerrroved on June 3 an3 bagged a t  the erd of 

the shi f t  on June 3. lhese bags had been sealed with duct tape. 25 of 

the bags contained insulation material remwed an the morning of ~une 8 ;  

these bags had not been sealed. (Tr. 66062, 669.) 

21. Ms.  Rebecca Goehring, the EPA bqector, arrived a t  North Gem School 

a t  a p p x h a t e l y  12:45 FM on June 4, 1991. (Tr. 30, 35.) 

22. No me was outside the boiler roan or in the cantainment area 

of the boiler roan of the North Gem School when the EPA hqectm arrived 

on the site. (Tr. 35-36.) 



23. Ms. Goehrbq proceeded to the Principalts off ice and smght and 

received f m  Mr. Rober t  L. Stevens, S q e r i n m t  of N o r t h  Gem School 

District No. 149, permission to wnduct an hpection. (Tr. 36. ) 

24. When the Ecfiecopessannel retuned fran lunch on June 4, they 

discweredthatMs. Goehrirywas i n t h e c o ~ a r e a o f t h e b o i l e r r o a n .  

B. Goehring remained in the con~inment area far  10 to  15 minutes after the 

EckEco person&l retun-& t o  the site. Although they had the apportunity to 

go into the cxMtainment area a t  that time and observe what Ms. Goehrkq was 

doing, none of the Eichem m n n e l  did so. (Tr. 457-58, 478-79, 656.) 

25. Ms. Goehring was in the containment area of the boiler roaan f a r  a 

total of approximably 20 minutes. (~r. 153.) 

26. When Ms. Goehring entered the boiler rooan contairmrent area, she 

faund that a l l  of the insulation had been removed or stripped frcan the boiler 

and a l l  of the boiler insulation which she ohserved was in bags. (Tr. 210. ) 

27. Ms. Goehring found that approximately one-fourth of the pipe isula- 

t ion which had been removed a t  the tire of her inspection in the boiler 

containment area had been bagged; the remaining three-fourths w a s  lying on 

the floor unbagged. (Tr. 214.) 

28. Ms. Goehring faund about 1116th of an inch of water on approximately 

50% of the floor of the boiler roan containment area. A t  other times tturiry 

the abatement project, the water muld oollect on the floar u n t i l  it was over 

the ankles of IW. Brad BrcxJning while he worked in the boiler roan containment 

area. (Tr. 216, 224-25, 651; -1. E%h. 1 a t  p. 4.) 

29, After the EPA inspector entered the contahnent area, she saw in 

the boiler rocnn a p i l e  of a i r  cell pipe insulation which she estimated to  

be 70 cubic yards in size. me insulation a w e d  white in color and the 

ends of the pieces of pipe s h w d  evidence of wetting. (TR. 39, 183.) 



30. Ms. Gcehring fand that the pile of unbagged pipe insulation in 

the boiler room omkimmt area was tkemi-wetlt. ( ~ r .  217-18; -1. m. 1 

a t  p. 3.) 

31. Ms. Goehring toak one sample of the air ell pipe insulation in  

the wdew pile. When Ms. .Goehring tore this pipe insulation, she 

f and that it w a s  8bry st iff  , very dry" and that it I t e m i t t e d  fibers, 

released dust." She placed the sample in  a I-ly packtt sample cantainer. 

(Tr. 39, 52-53, 218; Ozanpl. Ekh. 1 E.) 

32. Ms. Goehring saw a pile of bags - 20 to 30 in  her e s t h t i o n  - 
which she believed contained asbestcs-amtaining materials, namely, magnesium 

block. She estimated that these bags contained about 30 cubic feet of 

ma-ial. She picked up one bag to  test its weight and concluded tha t  it 

weighed approximately 20 pmds. In sane of the clear bags she saw water  i n  

the corners; in others she did not see any evidence of water. She concluded 

that "[tlhey had a t  sane point used w a t e r . I t  (Tr. 44-46.) 

33. Ms.  Goehring opened one of the bags and pulled out a piece of mag- 

nesium block. She ran her thumbnail acme. the top of the piece of magnesium 

block arrl scraped off a thin coat of w e t  material. She br&e the piece 

of magnesium block and it emitted dust. She crumbled a portion of it. 

She fand the piece of magnesium block t o  be dry between the wet outside 

layers. (Tr. 50-51, 222-224, 252.) 

34. Ms. Goehring took two samples of the piece of magnesium block 

insulation. She placed one sanple in a I W l y  pack" crntaiw ard placed 

a larger sample (-tely 6" by 4" by 2") i n  a zip lock bag. (Tr. 

51-53; (2-1. E2&. 1 E.) 



35. T h e  two sanples whi& Ms. Goehring placed in %hirly packsvv 

a bm-e rnrmbered as follows: the a i r  cell pipe insulation - 91240011 and 

the ~lragnesim block insulation - 91240012. These samples were sent by 

Ms. Goehring to the ~ e s t e x  Emimnma-1 Laboratory in Port 

W- for analysis. T h e  larger piece of magnesium block in the z ip  

lock bag w a s  not mhitted for teStirrg ar analysis. (Tr. 69-70, 150; 

CcPnpl. MIS. 1 E and 1 F.) 

36. The a i r  cell pipe insulation mterial (sample 91240011) was 

analyzed by Ms. Susan Davis, a laboratory technician for the Mancheder 

Em-1 -tory. She faund the sanple t o  be off-white, light 

tan/grey, paper-like and filx-ous. The sample arrived a t  the laboratory 

ir, a lvdampll ccodition. Using polarized light mi-, she concluded 

that the sanple was 95% chrysotile asbestos. (Tr. 267-73, 282, 285, 287, 

292-93; -1. Ekhs. 6 B and 12.) 

37. The magnesium block insulation (sample 91240012) was analyzed 

by Ms. Susan Davis, a laboratory technician for the Man&- BmAron- 

mental Laboratory. She found the sample to be white with a slight yellow 

tinge, soft and fjhrcus. She reported that the fiber. were very fine ard 

straight. Using polarized light micmsccpy, she mncluded that the sample 

was 35% amsite asbestos. (Tr. 267, 271, 273, 282-83, 286; Ccm'@l. ESrhs. 

6 C and 12.) 

38. Ms.  Goehring saw w h i t e  dust on sore of the bags in the boiler 

roan containment area. (Tr. 40, 46-47, 50.) 

39. Ms. Goehring did not take a sample of the dry p a & q  s&&ance 

which she had o&served on the exterior  eases of sore of the bagged 

material in the boiler roam containment area. (Tr. 220.) 

40. While Ms. Goehring w a s  in the amtahnent area of the boiler man 

she did not observe any visible emissions to the outside air. (Tr. 167.) 



41. At the wnclusian of her hspection, Ms. Goehring spoke w i t h  

Mr. Bmcmbq of Echeoo to tell him that the materials inside the bags 

w e r e  not sufficiently wet and that the bags shculd be reopened and w a t e r  

added before the bags left the area for diqnsal. Before 

Ms. Goehrbq left the site, a sufficient amunt of water had been added 

so that there Was good 4- of water in the bags. (Tr. 62-63, 230-32, 

250-51, 304-05, 461, 479, 658-59; -1. ESrh. 1 at p. 6.) 

42. Echeco enployees performed the final bagging aperation as follows: 

Mr. Brad Brawning took each sealed bag of askstos-containins material to 

the shmer in the deamtamhation unit wfiere he washed the exterior of the 

bag. Mr. Brcidng then placed the bag inside a second bag held by a secad 

Echeco employee stationed inside the decontamination unit. ?his employee 

then handed the double bag to a third Echeco employee outside the decontam- 

ination unit who sealed the second bag with duct tap. Mr. Echevarria then 

affixed a sticker to the second or outside bag and loaded the bag into the - 
trailer for transport;ation to the disposal unit. (m. 459-61, 662. ) 

43. T h e  bags w h i c h  Mr. Echevarria loaded into the trailer m e  heavy. 

Mr. Claylon Perkins, the Head Custodian at North Gem School, assisted 

l~lr. Eche~lrria in the loading prccess on ~une 4, 1991, and observed water 

in the bags and faund the bags to be heavy. (Tr. 461-62, 540-42, 

564. ) 

44. Follawing ampletion of the stripping and removal of the ma, 
the surfaces throughout the boiler roan were washed and wiped, the floor 

was mopped and the water which was so usedwas filtered through awater 

filtration unit to remve asbestos fibers that may have been released 

during the reno~tion project. (Tr. 680-82.) 



45. Mr. Robert Jahnson, who had been hired by the school district 

tomairdtmirrgontheaba-pjedas-underthe 

Asbestos Hazard -ency Response Act (AHERA), was on site when Ms. Godring 

ample- her inspection. (Tr. 59-60, 300.) 

46. On June 8, 1991, Mr. Jdmsm teak (13) air dtming 

samples in amnedion with the boiler house abatemmt project, Five of the 

samples were taken inside the boiler roan mnbhmt area. All five of the 

samples taken inside the boiler roan kere belaw the clearance level of 70 

structures with results as folluws: sample No. 1 = 17.8 structure; san@le 

No. 2 = 0 -es; sample No. 3 = 53.3 struchres; sampleNo, 4 = 0 &mctmes; 

and sample No. 5 = 0 structures. (Tr. 306-08, 326-29; CQnpl. M. lo.) 

47. Contrary to the allegation i n  paragraph 10 of the cxanplaint, there 

viere no "pipes -ed with dsy friable asbestos-containing insulation and 

pipes fran which such insulation had keen strippedtv i n  the p i l e  which 

Ms. Goehring found in the boiler roam. Ms.  Goehring fourd only insulation 

material in the pile. (Tr. 194-97; 370. ) 

48. Contrary to the allegation in paragraph 11 of the canplaint, 

Ms, Goehring did not open t*bagstv containing p i p  insulation material, nor 

did she collect Itsamples of dry friable asbestosmntaidng material f m  

those 'bagsf. Ms. Goehring did not apen any bag containing pipe insulation 

material. (Tr. 221-22, 370-71.) 

49, C a t z q  t o  the allegation in paragraph 12 of the cxanplaint, 

W. did not apen %agsN of biler insulation material w h i c h  had 

been removed fran the boiler, nor did she collect "a sanple fran each of 

several bags." Ms. Goehring apened only one bag mntaining the magnesium 

block insulation which had been r-ed frcan the boiler and she to& only 

ane sample of the material frcan that bag. (Tr. 220-21, 371-72.) 



V. Dkcussim and Canclusions 

A. Liability 

of the lmny pnposes of the CAA is to llprotect and 
L2/ 

the quality of the Nation's air reoances. As one mymat of the 
13/ 

prqram to pmb% the Nation's air, Section l l2 (b)  (1) of the CAA e s h b  

lishes a 1 M  of hazard- aii pollutants; asbestos is on that 1 M .  

Under Section 1l2  of the CAA, the AhMstmtor of EPA is authorized 

to -gate emissions s t m d a x k  for sources of hazardous air pollutants, 

i.e., the NESHAR. IIHawever, in sane ckses regulation in this form [emis- 

sion would not be effective or appropriate for significant 

source =teg=ies. For instance, missions of asbestos fibers f m  om- 

struction or demlition sites cannot be controlled or even -ed by 

focusing on a point source of emissions. To assure that adequate control 

is, nevertheless, achieved, it is in sane cases possible to prescribe the 

use of specific equipoent or proasdmes in the design of a facility crr 

conduct of an activity. In the 1977 amendmmts to the Clean Air Act. . . 
the Congress authorized the use of other regulatory requirements including 

dsign, equiprent, work practice or operatiom1 sbndards as an alternative 
u/ 

to emissions standards to carry out the objectives of Section 1U." 

11/ 42 U.S.C. Sections 7401 et seq. - 

l2 /  42 U.S.C. Section 7401 (b) (1) . - 
i3 /  42 U.S.C. Section 7412 (b) (1) . - 

S. Rep. No. 101-228, l O l s t  mng., 26 Sesf .  (1990) reprinted in 1990 
U.S.C.C.A.N. 3385, 3567. In 1990 this authority amended in the 
new section l U ( h )  to add operator training requirements to the list 
of other regulatory requirements to be used in lieu of emission 
standards and to assure that these alternative forms of control were 
available to EPA as it inplemented new statutory authority to set 
k3moloqr-baped &andank for major sources and area sources of 
hazardaus air pollutants. 



!the NESHAP for asbestos is contained in 40 C.F.R. Part 61, Subpart 

M. T h e  standard for demolition and renwation, in the fonn of -k 

merits, is faml in Section 61.145. Ihe CAA and the N I S H W  provide strict 
a/ 

liability for civil violations of their provisions. 

In carder to establish liability under the asbestos NESHAP, Ocnaplainarrt 

rrplst make a tsmfold showirg. First, EPA nust show that the rninimal thresh- 
u/ 

old rquhements of the NESHAP have been met. The minimal requirements 

applicable to this matter are c m k k d  in 40 C.F.R. Section 61.145(a). 

Under Section 61.145(a), the m i n i m a l  threshold requirements a~plicable in 

this case would be met where the amcxlnt of RACM involved in renovation or 

removal is at least 260 linear feet on pipes or 160 square feet on other 

axpnents. ~iven the admissions by Respondents (pp. 2-3), it is clear 

that the minimal threshold requirements have been met and, a, the 

work practice requiremmts of Sections 61.145 (c) (3) and 61.145 (c) (6) (i) 

apply to  Respondents. 

As to the second part of the twofold showing, the Ccanplaht must 

establish that the work practice requirements of the NESHAP have not 
17/ 

been satisfied, The work practioes relevant to this wmplaint r w e d  

Erheco to adequately wet RACM when it was being stripped f m  facility 

=/ U.S. v. Sealtite Corn., 739 F. Supp. 464, 468 (E.D. Ark 1990) ; U.S. v. 
Ben's Truck and Ebuirrrment. Inc,, 25 Env't. Rep. Qs. (m) 1295 (E.D. 
Cal 1986); U.S. v. Huso Kev and Son Inc., 30 Envft. Rep. Cas. (m) 
1697 (D. R.I. 1989); U.S. v. Qlaberas Asbestos Ltd., Civ. No. F-84-650, 
Order at 2 (E.D. Cal. October 30, 1985). 

16/ U.S. v. Sealti* mm., 739 F. SUpp. at 468; U.S. v, MPM Contractors. W. - 
767 F. Supp. 231, 232 (D. Kan. 1990). 



- 21 - 

mgmmrb (40 C.F.R. Section 61.145 (c) (3) ) ard to adequably w e t  the 

material and m that it remained w e t  until collected an3 amtahed ar 
18/ 

tzeated in prepration for disposal (40 C.F.R. Section 61.145 (c) (6) (i) ) . 
contend that the EPA regulations in this matter are 

mmnstittutimal and, henoe, unmforceable, because the regulations are 

M ~ L ~ R  and ambiguous. 

Mr. Steve Harrington, who was called by Respondents as an 

witness, testified as to the vague and ambiguous nature of the asbestios 
19/ 

"adequately wet" rquhmmts;  as to the absence of unifm, 

danonstrable, objective ard quantifiable standards or methods for the 
20/ 

evaluation or measurement of adequately wet RACM; and as to the practical 

impossibility of prevent- all asbestos fiber release or emissions in the 
a/ 

caurse of asbestos r-1 and/or stripping oyczrations. 

u/ Section 61.145(c) states: 
(c) Pmedwes for asbestos emission mntrol. Each 

cx~ner or operator of a demolition or renuvation 
activity to wham this paragraph applies, accordirrg 
to paragraph (a) of this section, shall comply with 
the follawing procedwes. * * * * * * * 

(3) When R7Of is strigped f m  a facility ccaoponent 
while it remains in plaoe in the facility, adequately 
wet the RACM durirrg the stripping operation. * * * * * * * 
(6) For all RACM, including material that has been 

removed or stripped: 
(i) Adequately w e t  the material and m e  that it 

remains wet until collectd and contained or treated 
in prepration for disposal in accordance with Section 
61.150, . . , 



As a llgene.ral rule. . .challenges to rulemaking are rarely enter- 
tained in an ahhdskataive enfcrcenmt proceeding. . . . Ihe decisicn 

to accept a&inktmtive review of a r u l m  challenge is at best 
22/ 

discretionary.w Astheaxntof m f o r t h e D .  C. Cirmithasso 

aptly stated: 

An achninistrative agency has available two methods 
for formulating policy that will have the force of law. 
An agency may establish b- policy rulemkhg 
Farrsmnes by which it pmmilgates sutstantive rules, or 
thmugh adjudications which constitute biding pr-ents. 

* * * * * * * * * 
A properly adopted substantive rule establishes a 

standard of conduct which has the force of law. In sub 
sequent administrative proreedings involving a sutstantive 
rule, the issues are whether the adjudicated facts con- 
form to the rule arrl whether the rule should be waived or 
applied in that particular instance. The underlying 
policy embodied in the rule is not generally subject to 
challenge before the agency. z/ 
T h i s  is especially true with respect to a mnstitutional challenge 

to the ssbestcd NEMAe regulations. Section 307(b) (1) of the C . ,  42 

U.S.C. section 7607(b)(1), limits judicial review of any emission standard 

or r-ement prmulgated under Section 112 of the Act to the filing of 

a petition for review in the U. S. Cour t  of Appeals for the District 

of ODlumbia within 60 days of the prmulgation of the regulatian. 

22/ In re American Fmloqical Recvc - le Research Corn. and Donald Gums, 
RCRA (3008) Appeal No. 83-3 at 5-6 (July 18, 1985). 

23/ Pacific Gas and Electric Co. v. Federal Power Cann'n., 506 F. 2d - 
33, 38 (D.C. C i r .  1974). 



-, Section 307 (b) (2) of the Act, 42 U. S.C. Section 7607 (b) (2) , 
specifically w i t s  judicial review of su& regulations in civil and 

241 
criminal enforcenmt actions. 

24/ Section 307 (b) provides, in pertinent part: - 
(1) A petition for review of action of the A&um&m . . tar 

in pr-gating any national primary or sec0rdax-y 
ambient air quality standard, any emission standard 
or reqckemmt under section 7412 of this title, . . . 
m y  be filed only in the United States Court of Pgpeals 
for the District of Columbia. . . . Any petition for 
review urder this subsection shall be filed within 
sixty days f m  the date nutice of such -gation, 
app-1, or action appxrs  in the Federal Register, 
except that if such petition is based solely on 
grow& arising after such sixtieth day, then any 
petition for review under this subsection shall be 
filed within sixty days after such grounds arise. 

(2) Action of the Administrator with respect to w h i c h  
review auld have been obtained under paragraph (1) 
shall not be subject to judicial review in civil or 
a M n a l  proceedings for enfommmt. 

Respon3ent.s conten3 that "on their face, the provisions of 42 U.S.C. 
Section 7607(b) prpor t  only to limit iudicial review. ?here are no 
visions limiting the scope of the review in this administrative procesding." 
?lo suggest that Congress intenled to limit the role of the Federal judiciary 
in this regard, while leaving Administrative Law Judges with unfettered 
discretion to consider and pass upon constitutional challenges to the 
asbesbs NESHAP is patently ridiculous. This provision of the Qde e s b b  
lishes the sole method to determine Whether the -tar has canplied 
with apprapriate prooedures in prmulgating the regulation in question, or 
whether the particular regulation is arbitrary capricious, slrpported by 
the admhistntive read. . . . [and] to pursue any of the other familiar 
irquirieswfiichariseintheccurseofana&um&ra . . tive review II 

W r d h C f  Coo V. United States, 434 U.S. 275, 285 (1978). 
administrative pmcedbg, such as the present case, does not an3 cannot 
provide a forum for resolving challenges, constitutional or otherwise, to 
the asbestos NESHAP. 



I nust reject Rqmmkn t s t  challerqe to the constitutionality of the 

asbestosNESHAPonthebasisofthisprwisionintheCAA. lYthisrestric- 

tian on judicial review has been fmnd to apply to a claim that a regulation 
25/ -- 

is unconstitutionally vague.1g Weover, at least one cart has fanrl 

that an earlier and samewhat similk version of the asbestos NESHAP regula- 
26/ 

tion was not unr%nstihtianally vague. 

25/ United states v. Sierra ES'lvironmental G~OUD, - Inc., Civil Action No. 
C-2-93-248, slip op. at 11 (E.D. Ohio, August 31, 1993); See also United 
States v. Walsh, No. 92-35088, slip op. at 12073-74 (9th Cir. October 26, 
1993). 

m n d e n t s  challenge any reliance upon United States v. Walsh on the 
grosmds that a provision of the CAA w h i c h  was cited by the aarrt is no 
longer part of the arumled ve;rsion of 42 U.S.C. Section 7412. -, 
however, overlook the fact that, with the 1990 ammhmts to the CAA, a 
new subsection (b) was added. It provides, in pertinent part: 

(1) In g-1 
For ~urposes of this section, if it is not feasible in 

the judgmnt of the Administrator to prescribe or enforce 
an emission standard for control of a hazardous air pollu- 
tant or pollutants, the Administrator may, in lieu thereof, 
prcmlgate a design, equipwmt, work practice, or aperatioml 
standard, or acgnbination thereof, which in the M n h h t m t m : f s  
judgment is consistent with the pravisions of sukection (d) 
or (f) of this section. In the event the AdmhMxatar 
pmnulgates a design or equipent standard th is  sub- 
section, the Administrator shall include as part of such 
standard such requirements as will assure the praper opera- 
tion and main- of any such element of design or eqpipwmt. 

a/ United States v. Sierra Wironmental m. w., at 13. 



'lhe history of the lladquately wetw requirements in the asbestos 

NESHAP regulations demnstrates that the regulated public clearly had 

adequate q p r b m i t y  to raise questions ard to challenge the require- 

ments prior to their pblication as final rules. Irxhe3, sane of the 

revisions to the regulations ard those -ts were considered by EPA. 

When the initial NE3-W for asbesbs demlition work was first 

prcpsed it prohibited visible emissions to the atmo@ere of asbestos 
a/ 

particulate matter during demolition work. The absolute prohibition 

of visible emissions was dropped in the final rule because, as EPA 

acknowledged, "it would be inpracticable, if not impossible, to do such - 

a/ 
work without meat- visible emissions. 

EPA subsqqently exkxxled the asbestos NElSHAP I1to cover renovation 

operations with emission potential of a maqnitude similar to that of - 
29/ 

demolition aperations covered by the standard. 11 The new renovation 

rule required asbestos to be "adequately wetted during stripping1' ard 

required %sbesbs materials that have keen removed or stripped. . .be 
adequately wetted to ensure that such materials remain wet during all 

remaining stages of demlition or renovation and related handling 
30/ 

operations. 

27/ 36 Fed. Reg. at 23242 (Deember 7, 1971). - 
28/ 38 Fed. EZeg. at 8821 (April 6, 1973). - 
29/ 39 Fed. Reg. at 38065 (October 25, 1974). - 
30/ 40 Fed. Reg. at 48300 (October 14, 1975). - 



At that time saw of those who cazPnented on the proposed rule reque&& 
31/ 

that EPA lldescribe more specifically a prqer wlettirsg operation.11 EPA 

responded by explaining that the pnpose of the wetting requiremerrts is "to 
321 

reduce the a m m t  of asbs tcs  dust generated during demolition operations." 

EPA declined to specify paraper e i n g  proedures because it -1uded that 

marry different procedmes would accc~nplish the necessary etting an3 that 

those engaged in damlition work were familiar with proper wetting pmadmes. 
33/ 

m, such specif ication was Itneither necessary nor appropriate." 

EPA did add a definition of "adequately wettedm: llsufficiently mixed - 

341 
or coated w i t h  water or an aqueous solution to prevent dust emissions.w 

Moreover, the regulation was revised to state that the asbestos NEBIAP 

procedures were to Ifbe used to prevent emissions of particulate asbestos 
351 

material to outside air. Thus, the adequate wtting require in 

the asbestos NElSHAP was broadened or extenled fram reducing the amcrclnt of 

dust emissions in renovation and demolition work to preventing dust emission 

altogether, even though EPA had, only two years before, ackncncrledged that 
361 

demolition without visible emissions was impracticable, if not hpssible. 

311 40 Fed. &g. at 48296 (October 14, 1975). - 
321 a. (eq$msis added). - 

331 Id. - 
341 40 Fed. Reg. at 48299 (enphasis added). - 
35/ 40 Fed. Reg. at 48300 (-is added). - 
=/ Sunra, FN 28. 



Although the regulation has ha revised and ramhrd since 

that time to delete the specific reference to **preventit in the standard 

f a  demlition ard renovation, the intention to prevent the release of 

has been Urmgh the arrrent definition of a&- 
37/ 

quately wet. 

In 1990, EPA issued a w e t  entitled I*Asbesbs/- Adquately 
38/ - 

Wet Guidancet1 (guidance), the pxpose of which was to provide guidance 

t o a s b e s t o s i m p e & x s a n d t h e r e g u l a t e d ~ t y o n h a w t o d e t e r m i n e  

if friable A m  is adequately wet. The guidance contained a disclaimer 

emphasizing that it,asnisted solely of r-tions which, even though 

follow&, do not constitute a guarantee against findings of violation. 

In this guidance, EPA aclaMwledged that "thermal blodkV* insulation 

used on toilers does not ahmb water readily and m y  be hard to penetrate 

by water or a wetting agent. In recognition of this fact, the guidance 

tacitly acknowlpdsed that the interior of such naterials m y  remain dry 

during renwal: 'Whenever such materials a .  Waken during the raooval 

process, the dry surfaces must be wetted immediately to reduce 

emissions. 

Ihe guidance also mcplicitly recognized that A m  will not always be 

soaked mrpletely even with ~ t e d  spray*: '*Adequate wetting of ACX 

is typically acocnplished by rvtedly spraying it with a liquid or a 

-tting agent, usually amended water (water to w h i c h  surfactant chemicals 



h v e  been added), until it can aJsorb no mre. Haever, this does not 

necessarily mean that the ACM will be soaked Wmqhout." 

While Respcndents may view the adequate wetting requkmmts in the 

asbestos NEHAP as Wission Impossible@t, the impossibility of Fneventirrg 

asbestos fiber emissions dur- the canse of r e n o ~ t i c m  wrxk ar the 

impc6;sibility of adequately wetting all RACM before or during strippirq 

ar remwal does nat relieve Respondents of liability in this matter. 

Impossibility of ccmpliance is generally no defense to liability far 
39/ 

violations of the CAA. Ihus, the CAA errvisions situations &ere s b r d a n b  

which are anrently ecodcally or technologically infeasible will 
a/ 

nonetheless be enforced. While a defense that a regulatory requirement 

is technically or eco~cally infeasible is not relevant to the issue of 

liability, such infeasibility, coupled with good faith efforts, can be 
a/ 

considered with respect to the penalty in an enforerent action. 

EPA need not p r m  that visible emissions of asbestos occurred in 

order to prove a violation of 40 C.F.R. Section 61*145(c) (3) or (c) (6) (i). 

It is the failure to follow the work practice to adequately wet the RAcM 
- 

42/ 
rather than the release of visible dssions which creates liability. 

43/ 
EPA inspectar testified, and it has been so foun3, that when she 

tare a piece of @@semi-wetV1 air cell pipe insulation lying on the floor of 

the boiler roam, she disccnrered that it was very stiff ard very dry and that 

39/ Unian Electric 00. v. EPA, 427 U.S. 246, 258-9 (1976). - 
40/ miends of the v. m c  Electric Pawer Co., 419 F. S-. 528. - 

535 (D. D.C. 1976). 

411 united States v. Ford Motor Co., 814 F. 2d 1099, 1103-4 (6th Cir .  1987). - 
42/ U. S. v. Ben's Truck and Bmhnent, - Inc., 25 Ehvrt. Rep. Cas. (BNA) 

at 1299; U. S. v. MPM Contractors. Inc., 767 F. Supp. at 233. 

43/ Finding of Fact 31 at p. 15. - 



when tarn, it emitted fibers and released dust. The EPA inspectar 
.44/ 

further testified, and it has been so famd, that when she removed 

a piece of magnesium block fran a sealed bag in the boiler roam, she 

the artside ard that, when Lnaken, it emitted dust, 

@@Adequately wet1@ is defined in the regulation as meaning l@sufficiently 

mix ar penetrate with liquid to prevent the release of particulates. If 

visible emissions are okemed caning fran asbestos- . . material, 

then that material has nut been adequately wetted. However, the abmce 
45/ 

of visible emissions is not sufficient evidence of being adequately wet." 

S i n c e  the piece of air cell pipe insulation which had been stripped fran 

facility a m p m m t s  and wh ich  was lying on the floor of the boiler roam 

emitted f h x s  and released dust when the EPA inspector broke it, I conclude 

that the material was not adequately wet. @IIn cases involving alleged 

violations of N E S '  for asbestos, caurts have routinely relied on the 

obervations of bspectors to determine &ether asbestos was adequately 
46/ 

wetted. @@ Thus, violations of both 40 C. F.R. Section 61.145 (c) (3) and 40 

44/  ind ding of Fact 33 at p. 15. - 
45/ 40 C.F.R. Section 61.141. - 
46/ U. S. v. MPM Oontradors Inc. 767 F. Supp. at 233 and cases cited thesein. - 

(It should be noted that there has k e n  a &ange i n t h e w o w  of the 
regulatory definition of @@adequately wet" since those cases were decided. 
The definition in effect until Ncmmber 20, 1990 was @@sufficiently mixed 
or coated w i t h  water or an aqueous solution to prevent dust emissions.w 
40 C.F.R. Section 61.140 (1990). m e  new definition, applicable to the 
case at hand to make it easier for EPA to prove a violation (@@if 
visible emissions are ohserved [presumably by an inspector] c a n b g  fran 
asbestus-amtainkq material, then that material has not been adequately 
wetted1@) , an3 nme difficult for Respondents to refute a violatian (@@the 
absence of visible emissions is not sufficient evidence of being ade- 
quately wettt) 40 C.F.R. Section 61.141 (1991) .) 



C.F.R. Section 61.145 (c) (6) (i) can be f& on the basis of an impecbps 
a/ 

obemation of RACM debris which remains after stripping has ocanred. 

mefore, I rmst canclude that Reqmnlents have viola- 40 C.F.R. 

-ion 61.145(c) and Section 112 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. Section 7412, as 

all- in the cmplaht. Bbre specifically, I conclude that 

failed to amply w i t h  the NESHAP m k  practioes to adequately w e t  the RAm 

during the stripping aperation fmn the pipe in the boiler rocan and to 

adquately wet the RA61 stripped from the pipe ard ensure that it rmained 

wet until oollected and contained or treated in preparation for disposdl. 

Since the RACM which was lying on the floor had mt been bagged, it had nat 

yet been collected ard contained in preparation for disposal. Asbestos 
481 

materials are considered l'wllectedll when they are praperly bagged, 

Until the stripped RACM was so collected, i.e. , bagged, Respordents wwx 

required to adequately wet the RACM to ensure that it remain wet. Respond- 

ents had failed to adequately wet the stripped pipe insulation. 

mere is scgne question as to the nature and extent of Respondentst 

responsibility to continue to wet the RACM once it had been collected and 

cantained (i.e., bagged) for disposal. When the asbestos N E S H W  was amz-ded 

in 1984 to require adequate wetting lto ensure that they [asbestos materials] 
49/ 

remin wet until they are collected for disposal. . .,'I EPA explained that 

-this revision was made in response to an inquiry as to whether ~~~ 
50/ 

has to stay wet even after it is properly bagged anl sealed." In further 

a/ Id. 
48/ 49 Fed, Reg. 13659 (pgril 5,  1984). - 
49/ 49 Fed. Reg. 13663 (April 5, 1984). - 
50/ 49 Fed. Reg. 13659 (April 5, 1984). - 



wlanation, EPA said: 

T h e  intent of the requirement to keep friable asbe&as 
materials wet dur- all remining stages of demlition 
was to ensure that the asbestos materials that have been 
removed or strippd h t  nat yet disposed of are nut all- 
t o d z y c u t s o t h a t a s b e s b s f i b e m ~ a i r k o r n e .  If 
they are ~arc=perly sealed in leak tight colltainers or bags 
alewet, theyshazldnotdryoutbeforetheycanbe 
transferred to an aooeptable dkpsal site. In any case, 
aftertheyarebagged, thewaste-1- in 
Section 61; 152 [now Section 61.1501 (and not Section 61.147) 
[m Section 61.1451 wculd apply to the handling of the 
asbestos materials. To clarify the meaning of this portion 
of the &ar&rd, the wording of Section 61.147(c) (1) [nclw 
Section 61.145 (c) (6) (i) ] has been revised to indicate that 
the asbestos ma-ials must be kept wet until they are 
collected for -1 in accordance with Section 61.152 
[row Section 61.150 ] . ?hey wculd be considered %ollectedw 
when they are properly bagged. a/ 
Therefore, I conclude that the requiremmts of Section 61.145(c) did 

not apply to the wet magnesium block RACM which was f& sealed in a leak 

tight bag. However, the condition of the stripped pipe insulation is a 

sufficient basis upon w h i c h  to find that Respondents violated Section 

61.145 (c) (3) and Section 61.145 (c) (6) (i) as alleged in the ccpnplairrt. 

vr. ?he F'enalty 

A. Introduction 

section 22.27 (b) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice (OP) (40 C.F.R. 

section 22.27(b)) states, in pertinent part: 

If the hresidirrg Officer detemines that a violation 
has omxred, the Presiding Officer shall de- 
the dollar amocnrt of the recaaranended civil penalty to 
be assessed in the initial decision in acoordance with 
any criteria set forth in the Act relatirq to the 
proper a m m t  of a civil penalty, and nust consider 
any civil pmalty guidelines issued urde;r the Act. If 
the Presiding Officer decides to assess a penalty 
different in amount f m  the penalty remmerded to be 
assessed in the amplaint, the Presiding Officer shall 
set forth in the initial decision the specific reasons 
for the increase or decrease. 

51/ Id. - 



Sectim 113(e) (1) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. Section 7413, provides, 

in pertinent part, that @@[i]n determining the am~unt of any penalty to 

be assessed undes this section or section 7604(a) of this title, the 
. . 

Jdmmstmtar ar the cant, as apprcpriate, shall take into consideration 

(in addition to such other factors as justice may require) the size of 

the biness, tAe eamanic inn#& of the penalty on the business, the 

violatorr s full axnpliance history and good faith efforts to amply, 

the duration of the violation as established by any credible evideme 

(including evidence other than the applicable test method), paymmt by 

the violator of penalties previausly assessed for the same violation, the 

econcanic benefit of mnaqliance, and the seriousness of the violation. 

EPA has issued a penalty policy to serve as civil penalty guidance 

&m calculating admhidmtive penalties under Section 113 (d) of the 
z/ 

CAA. The penalty policy contains twu cmpanents: the gravity of the 

violation and the econCanic benefit of nonampliance. (Appendix I11 to 

the policy covers the e c o d c  benefit and gravity carp- for asbestas 

NESHAP renovation violations.) After calculating these cmponents, they 

are mnbined to yield the @@preliminary deterrence amcxmtw . ?hereafter, 
adjustmerrt factors, which are described in the body of the policy, are 

applied so that a fair and quitable penalty will result. 

EPA detamhed that a proposed penalty of $43,400 was amopriate 

for the two violations fowki. This figure was reached by setting the 

gravity OanpOnent at $12,000 and the eco&c benefit cmpnent at $31,400 

52/ Clean Air Act Stati0m.q Source Civil PeMlty Policy (Fkvised - 
Octaber 25, 1991) . 



and by permitting no adjustrats t o  this "preliminary de- anuuntm 

to  ensure that the f inal  penalty amount w a s  f a i r  and equitable. 

I concur with the wlainant t s  calculation of the gravity capon- 

&. BE anmnt of $12,000 is WE minimal amanrt pruvided mkr penalty 

policy f a r  the gravity of the two violations fami. It is based upon me 

day of violation, the r e m ~ ~ L '  of the lawest m&er of units of asbestos . 

material (less than ten units)  and the snrallest s ize  violatar (net current 

assets under $100,000) . 
However, I cannot adopt the Ccanplaimntts calculation of the econcanic 

benefit cclmponent of $31,400 for two reasons. First, it is based upon an 

asam& cost of $20 per square foot or linear foot for the remval of the 

RACM a t  N o r t h  Gem School. The cost, based upon the two bids suhnitted by 

Echw and FXI, was $8.20 or $8.87 per linear foot for removal of the RACM 

frcnn the pipes. me cost for r m l  of the RAm from the boiler, based 

upon the two bids suhnitted by Echeco and PMI, was $15.50 and $14.84, res- 
53/ 

pectively, per square foot. 

My sea& reason for  not adopting C c ~ l l p l a i n a n t ~ s  calculatian of the 

e o o d c  benefit c a p n e n t  is tha t  it is based upon an asslrmption that the 

wwrk wfiich w e n t s  did in the c r a w l  space was done in violation of the 

asbestos -work r-. 

m t s  bid of $6,900 far the boiler roan wwrk was based upon $8.20 
per linear fcut for the renro~l of the pipe insulation and $15.50 
per square foot for  the remrval of the boiler insulatian. Ihus, the 
b t a l  of $6,900 was rcxnded up from a bid of $6,864 ($8.20 x 270) + 
($15.50 x 300) = $2,214 + $4,650 = $6,864. The FMI: bid for the 
c r a w l  space pipe w a s  $8,873 or $8.87 per linear foot. Therefore, I 
conclude that the a& per square foot on the boiler in the FNI bid 
was approximately $14.84: $6.847 - (270 x $8.87) = $14.84. 

300 



Caplainant - alleged in the ccmplaint or a t  the Wing that 

the stsimbq of the pipes in the crawl space w a s  done impmperly. m, 
camsel  far -lainant stated a t  the hearing: ll?here have been no allega- 

54 - 
tiom of violations in .the crawl space area.I1 The EPA did not 

55/ 
corduct an inspection under the main kuilding (i. e. , i n  the crawl space) . 
' I h e o n l y e v i ~ t h a t w a s ~ ~ t h e w o r k i n t h e c r a w l  

space suppork .the prapositian that the removal of the R A a  therein was 

done with a large quantity of water and, based upon the post-aha- air 

sampling, microscapically minimal release, i f  any, of asbestos particulates. 

Thus, Mr. Claylon Perkins, the Project Manager for the Bancroft School 

D i s t r i c t  on the asbestos abatement project a t  North Gem School and Head 

Cubdian a t  the school, testified that after the abatement project heneath 

the gymnasium floor w a s  ccwpleW, the tongue-in-groove flooring thmqlmk 

the gymnasium flooring cupped as a result of the presence of excessive 
56/ 

moisture in the crawl space bmeath the floor. Moreover, each of the five 

a i r  monitoring samples w h i c h  Bk. Johnson to& in the crawl space mth the 
57/ 

gymnasium afw the ampletion of the project sh& zero (0) strwtwes. 

In detemmmg . 
the penalty, the statute requires me to consider the econcanic 

benefit of noncaqliance. It has been neither alleged, nor faund, that there 

w a s  nonaqliance by Fkqmrdents on the project i n  the crawl space. I am 

54/ Tr. 463. - 
55/ Tr. 212. - 
56/ Tr. 542-43. 

57/ Tr. 326-29, 463; -1. E2&. 10. - 



also required to consider the duration of the violation as established 

by any credible evi-. No credible evidence has been offered to shm 

that the violations m t t e d  by Respondents in the boiler roan contimed 

as the abatement work was begun in the craw space later on June 4 and 

continuedon June 5 ,  June6 ard June 7 .  

AlWmugh the Penalty Policy states that sl[i]t should be assun&, 

a e s s  there is cor~~incing evidence to the coatrary, that all stripping, 

r m l ,  disposal and handling was done improperly if such improper 

practices are obsewed by the inspector,11 I nust reject such an approach. 

While this may be an appropriate policy for the calculation of a proposed 

penalty at the time a ccanplaint is issued, it has no application to my 

calculation of the penalty to be assessed folluwitq a hearing under the 

m P .  Under Section 22.24, the Caplainant herein had the lurden of going 

forward with and of proving any violation and that the proposed penalty is 

appropriate for such violations; as Presi- Offi-, I am required to 

determine each matter of controversy upon a prepoxkmnce of the evidence - 
not upon an asamption. The Feqondent is not required to present a defense 

where no prima facie case has been established concaning possible violations 

in the maw1 space area. Here the amplainant established no such p r h  

facie case; Meed, as noted, the Caplainant did not allege any violations 

in the crawl space. Ifi fact, the only evidence offered on the wcork done in 

the crawl space w r t s  a conclusion that the work was done properly. 

Therefore, I shall set the eoonanic benefit of mnaqliance at 

$6,900.00 wh ich  is the amunt of Echecots calculation for the boiler roan 

work after it was rounded up to $6,900.00. 



The preliminary deterrence anuunt would be, therefare, $12,000.00 + 

$6,900.00, or $18,900.00. 

Altbugh the Agency made no adjusbmts to the preliminary de- 

arrmnrt, the statute requires me to take into amsideration w violatargs 

good faith efforts to caaply and & other factors as justice may require. 

In recognition of the fact that F2spordents toak nunemus lrreasures to 

prevent the release of adxstzs emissions and to m i s e  ensure that 

the project was aocanplished with& damage to plblic health and the emiron- 

ment, I believe that such good faith efforts and justice dictate a damward 

adjustment of the pMalty. Amng the many -es w h i c h  F&spndents took, 

and which have been fcund as fads herein, were: notification to local 

authorities and to EPA; installation of critical barriers in the -in- 

ment area; installation of a decontamination unit; sealing the drain in the 

the boiler roan; use of an airless sprayer with a surfactant; use of a nega- 

tive air machine; use of a water hose when removing the RACM; use of a water 

filtration unit; and dcuble baging and sealing of the RACM after remval. 

It should also be noted that Rspndmts did use water while r a m v i q  

the RACM in the boiler man. Indeed, water was used fram two different 

sources -- a water hose and fram the airless sprayer. mus, this case is 

tutally unlike one in which the contractor fails altogether to use water. 
58/ 

See, for example, U. S. v. Hwo Kev and Son Inc. where "at no time during 

the damlition aperation did it [%o Key] wet the - w e d  boilersm 

and Hugo Key was fatnd to have failed to adequately wet friable asbestos 

materials during stripping and to keep them wet until collected for disposal. 

58/ 30 Envrt. Rep. Qs. (BNA) at 1702. - 



In full recognition of these factors, I conclude that the QQprelimina+Y 

deterrenOe amxmtlQ of $18,900.00 should be re%& by 50 per cent. Acmrd- 

ingly, I de- that the appropriate final penalty amcunt is $9t450.00. 

59/ 
O R D E R  

pursuant to Section ll3(d) of the a, 42 U.S.C. Section 7413(d), a 

civil penalty in the ammt of $9,450.00 is hereby assessed against 

Noma J. Echevamia and Flank J. Wevarria, dba Ech- Rwkomental Services, 

fm the violation of Section 112 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. Section 74x2. 

IT IS ORD- that Reqmtlents Nonna J. Echevarria and Frank Z. 

Bhiwrria dba Ekh- Enviromatal Services, pay a civil penalty to the 

Vnited States in the sum of $9,450.00. Payments shall be wde & cashier's 

ar certified check payable to Q Q T r ~ e s ,  United States of America. ?he 

checlk shall be sent to: 

U. S. Rwiro;nmental Prutection Agency 
(Region 10 Hearing Clerk) 
Po 0. Box 360903M 
Pittshqh, PA 15251 

a/ Ausuant to 40 C. F.R. Section 22.27 (c) , this initial decision 
shall - the final oxder of the Environmental Appeals Board 
u n l e s s a n a p p e a l t o t h e E h v ~ l A p p e a l s B o a r d i s ~  
by a party or the -1 Appeals Board elects to rev iew 
the initial decisim upon its own motion. 40 C.F.R. Section 
22.30 sets forth the pmcdwes for appeal frm this initial 
decision. 



Resparclents shall mte on the check the dockat rnnober specified on 

the first page of this initial decisicn. At the tima of payment, Reqcad-  

%ional IEearingl clerk 
U- S- Fnviranmerrtal Pratection w ~ c y  
Region 10 
1200 Sixth Avenue 
Seattle, F99 98101 

~ttention: Marian L. Atkinson 

Dated: 22: !YES 


